
 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

DANE COUNTY WISCONSIN 

 

RESOLUTION NO. R-2019-10 

  

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

APPROVING 2018 COMPLIANCE MAINTENANCE ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Village of Shorewood Hills Board, hereby approves the 

2018 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report. 

 

ADOPTED by the Village of Shorewood Hills Board at a duly scheduled meeting on 

June 17, 2019. 

 

 

 

             

  Dave Benforado, Village President 

 

 

 

       

  David Sykes, Village Deputy Clerk 

 























VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

DANE COUNTY WISCONSIN 

 

RESOLUTION NO. R-2019-11 
 

ADOPTION OF A PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN  
FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Shorewood Hills on December 15, 2009, adopted the Village of Shorewood Hills 
Comprehensive Plan under the authority of and procedures established by §66.1001(4), Wisconsin Statutes; and  

WHEREAS, that Comprehensive Plan document advises both the regular Plan Commission review of the 
Comprehensive Plan, as well as the ability to respond to unique circumstances which arise in relation to the 
Comprehensive Plan which are distinct from the regular plan review process, and to enable the Village’s 
consideration of potential amendments and updates where the Plan becomes irrelevant or contradictory to 
emerging policy or trends; and 

WHEREAS, §66.1001(4)(a), Wisconsin Statutes, requires that the governing body of the local governmental unit 
adopt written procedures designed to foster public participation at every stage of the comprehensive plan 
preparation or update process, and that such written procedures shall provide for wide distribution of draft plan 
materials, an opportunity for the public to submit written comments on the plan materials, and a process for the 
governing body to respond to such comments; and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Shorewood Hills believes that meaningful public involvement in processes designed to 
consider and amend its comprehensive plan is important to assure that the resulting plan meets the wishes and 
expectations of the public; and 

WHEREAS, the attached “Public Participation Strategy and Procedures for the Village of Shorewood Hills 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment 2019” includes procedures to foster public participation, ensure distribution of 
draft plan materials, provide opportunities for written comments on such materials, and provide mechanisms to 
respond to such comments. 

WHEREAS, at a duly noticed public meeting held on June 10, 2019, the Village of Shorewood Hills Plan 
Commission adopted resolution 2019-01 recommending that the Shorewood Hills Village Board adopt the 
attached “Public Participation Strategy and Procedures for the Village of Shorewood Hills Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment 2019” as its public participation procedures for amending the Village’s Comprehensive Plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Village Board of the Village of Shorewood Hills hereby 
adopts the procedures included in the attached “Public Participation Strategy and Procedures for the Village of 
Shorewood Hills Comprehensive Amendment 2019” as its public participation procedures for periodic 
amendments to the Village’s Comprehensive Plan, meeting the requirements of §66.1001(4)(a), Wisconsin 
Statutes. 

Adopted this 17th day of June 2019. 

 

      
  John Imes, Village Board Chair Pro Tem 

 

             
  David Sykes, Village Deputy Clerk  



Public Participation Strategy and Procedures   
Village of Shorewood Hills Comprehensive Plan Amendment 2019 Page 1 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION STRATEGY AND PROCEDURES  
FOR THE VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 2019 

 
Introduction 
A key required component of Section 66.1001 of Wisconsin Statutes—the State’s comprehensive planning 
legislation—is actively involving community stakeholders as each local comprehensive plan is being 
developed, updated, or amended.  Public participation helps to ensure that the resulting comprehensive plan 
accurately reflects the vision, goals, and values of citizens of the community.  
 
Section 66.1001(4)(a) of Wisconsin Statutes requires communities to adopt, by resolution, written procedures 
designed to foster public participation at every stage in the preparation, update, or subsequent amendment of 
its comprehensive plan. The written procedures must provide for wide distribution of the comprehensive 
plan, an opportunity for the public to submit written comments on the plan, and provisions for local 
response to such comments.  
 
The Village’s Comprehensive Plan was adopted on December 15, 2009, and has been subsequently amended. 
This Public Participation Strategy document meets the statutory requirements for the procedures to be used 
to guide the Village-initiated process to consider amending the comprehensive plan primarily for the 
redevelopment of the Garden Homes neighborhood (the “Amendment”). 
 
Major Goals of Public Participation Strategy 

 Provide multiple opportunities for the public to participate in the Amendment process. 

 Consider the ideas, desires, and objectives of participating Village residents and property owners. 

 Meet both the letter and spirit of Wisconsin’s Comprehensive Plan legislation. 

 Use the Village’s Plan Commission as a foundation for guiding the Amendment process. 

 Acknowledge and incorporate the extensive public input already provided concerning redevelopment of 
the neighborhood. 

 Recognize that the goals expressed above must be balanced with the need to complete the Amendment 
within a reasonable timeframe. 

 
Suggested Public Participation Techniques 
The Village will, at a minimum, use the following techniques to obtain public input during the Amendment 
process: 

 Assure that all Plan Commission and Village Board meetings to consider and adopt the Amendment are 
open to the public and are noticed as required by statute. 

 Incorporate into the record of proceedings all of the information and public comments provided at the 
public meetings already held in 2019 concerning the redevelopment of the Garden Homes neighborhood 
(January 10, February 5, February 25, March 26, April 9, May 14, and June 10). 

 Provide an opportunity for public comment at each public meeting. Some meetings may be structured to 
encourage wide participation from the public, while other meetings may be structured to be work 
sessions for the Plan Commission, Village Board, or some combination. At a minimum, a public 
comment period will be provided at each public meeting, although comments on newly presented 
information may be deferred to a future meeting to provide more to time to evaluate the information.   

 Invite the primary property owner in the neighborhood to present this proposed plans in one or more 
open public forums and receive public comment on this proposal. 

 Conduct at least one facilitated public meeting to develop the draft Amendment. 

 Notice and hold at least one formal public hearing on the draft Amendment and the adopting ordinance 
prior to adoption; all members of the public will have an opportunity to present testimony and offer 
comments at the public hearing. 



Public Participation Strategy and Procedures   
Village of Shorewood Hills Comprehensive Plan Amendment 2019 Page 2 

 
Opportunities for Comments/Responses on Draft Amendment  

 The Village will post copies of draft Amendment materials on its website, with hardcopies available at 
Village Hall during normal business hours. The Village may charge for public copies an amount equal to 
the costs of time and materials to produce such copies. 

 The Village also will provide copies of the draft and final Amendment to adjacent and overlapping 
governments and others as required by statute. 

 Public comments on the Amendment will be solicited and responded to at every stage of the 
Amendment process. 

 Written comments may be delivered, mailed, faxed, or emailed to the Village Clerk with all being shared 
with the Plan Commission and Village Board.  

 The Village will respond to written and oral comments via mail, email, fax, telephone, meeting, and/or 
through consideration of appropriate changes to the draft Amendment. 



Public Involvement Meeting #1
University Avenue

(Shorewood Blvd – University Bay Dr)



Public Involvement Meeting Outline

6:00 – 6:30 Open House

6:30 – 7:15 Welcome & Project Presentation

7:15 – 7:45 Presentation Q & A

7:45 – 8:00 Open House 



Project Overview



Project Needs
• Poor Pavement Condition

• Substandard Roadway 
Geometrics

• Lack of Bicycle Accommodations 

• Absence of Pedestrian Facilities

• Safety and Operations 
inefficiencies at Intersections

• Pedestrian/Bicycle Crossing on 
University Bay Drive of Campus 
Drive Bike Path

• Insufficient stormwater drainage 
collection and conveyance



University Ave. – Typical Section

Existing Typical Section

• 3-12’ Driving Lanes in Each Direction

• Sidewalk only on south side

• 52,000 vehicles per day



University Ave. – Typical Section

Proposed – Alternative Considerations 

• 105-ft to 106-ft Right of Way Width

• Maintain 6 Traffic Lanes, Median & Left Turn Lanes

• Bicycle Lanes

• New Sidewalk on North Side

• Multi-use Path

• Future Bus Rapid Transit Route

• National Highway System

• Enhance user experience



University Ave. – Typical Section
Proposed (Current 30% Design)

• 2 – 11’ & 1 – 10’ Driving Lanes in Each Direction

• New Sidewalk on North Side

• Wider Terraces



Proposed Improvements
Pedestrian 
Improvements

• New Curb 
Ramps

• Widen 
Terrace

• New North 
Side 
Sidewalk

• Continental 
Crosswalk 
Marking



Proposed Improvements
Safety and Operations 
Improvements

• New Traffic Signals

• Westbound crest curve 
improvement

• Dual Eastbound Left 
Turn at University Bay 
Drive

• Leading Pedestrian 
Interval



Proposed Improvements
Schmitt Pl – Draft

• Narrow Exist Median 

• R/W Pinch Point

• Poor Sight Distance

• Close Median

• Left Turn In and Out 
are prohibited



Proposed Improvements
Marshall Ct/Ridge St – Draft

• Maintain Configuration – Left 
turn from Marshall Ct. and 
Ridge St. Prohibited

• University Ave. Left Turn 
Lanes Lengths maintained

• Sidewalk on North Side 
(Access to Multi-Use Path)

• Removed SE Crossing to 
Median

• Far Side WB Bus Stop



Proposed Improvements
N. Franklin Ave. – Draft

• Maintain Left Turn Lane 
Lengths

• U-Turn near 
intersection

• Remove University 
Avenue Pedestrian 
Crossing



Proposed Improvements
University Bay Dr./Farley Ave. – Draft

• Dual EB Left Turn Lanes

• Far side EB Bus Pullout 

• Far side WB Bus Pullout to 
remain

• WB Bus Bypass Lane/Right Turn 
Lane

• Improved East Side Crossing



Proposed Improvements
University Bay Drive – Draft

• Two Northbound Lanes

• Northbound Bicycle Lane & 
Southbound Shared Lane

• Northbound Bus Pullout

• 10-ft Sidewalk on east side from 
University Bay Dr. to Overlook Terrace

• New 6-ft sidewalk on east side from 
Overlook Terrace to Children’s 
Hospital

• Additional Traffic Signal at Overlook 
Terrace 



Proposed Improvements

Village of Shorewood Hills Multi-use Path Project

• Path Connection Between Marshall Court and University Bay Dr.

• At-grade Crossing of University Bay Drive

• Construction Scheduled for Summer 2019



Proposed Improvements
University Bay Drive – Possible Grade Separated Overpass Bike/Ped Crossing 



Proposed Improvements
University Bay Drive – Possible Grade Separated Underpass Bike/Ped Crossing 



Metro Transit
Bus Accommodations

• Bus Stop Pull outs

– EB University Ave. after Farley Ave.

– University Bay Drive NB after railroad tracks

• Bus Stops moved to far side

– WB University Ave. after Marshall Court 

– EB University Ave. after Hill Street

• Bus Stops to remain in place

– WB University Ave. Pull out after University Bay Dr.

– EB University Ave. after Ridge Street

– N. Franklin Ave



Madison Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)
• University Ave. is part of the first planned route between 

East Towne and West Towne

– Planned stations at University Bay Drive and Shorewood 
Boulevard

• Operate in mixed traffic with limited stops, signal priority, 
and off-board fare collection

• Westbound bypass lane queue skip at University Bay

• Project will accommodate future shoulder running on 
Campus Drive for BRT buses when traffic is heavy

• Coordination with BRT Study Team is ongoing



Madison Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)

Project area

Future

Future



University Avenue Watershed
University Avenue Watershed

• Update existing local storm sewer structures and inlets

• Conducting feasibility study on large diameter storm 
pipes/tunnel options

– Feasibility study to be completed in July; design alternatives 
will be evaluated

• Willow Creek Watershed Study in the City of Madison will kick 
off July/August 2019

– Completed Concurrently with University Avenue design



Project Schedule
Spring – Fall 2019

• Complete University Bay Dr. Underpass/Overpass Feasibility Study 

• Environmental Document

• Preliminary Plans

• Right of Way Plat

• 2nd Public Involvement Meeting

Winter 2019/2020 – Summer 2020

• Final Plans

• Purchase Right of way

• 3rd Public Involvement Meeting

Spring 2021 – Fall 2021

• Construction



Project Website & Notifications

https://www.cityofmadison.com/engineering/projects/university-avenue
https://www.facebook.com/CityOfMadisonEngineering/

Please Complete and Return Comment Forms by July 3, 2019

https://www.cityofmadison.com/engineering/projects/university-avenue
https://www.facebook.com/CityOfMadisonEngineering/


Project Contacts
Glen Yoerger, P.E.

City of Madison Engineering

(608) 261-9177

gyoerger@cityofmadison.com

Mike Bakalars, P.E.

KL Engineering, Inc.

(608) 663-1218

mbakalars@klengineering.com

Alder Shiva Bidar

City of Madison Common Council

district5@cityofmadison.com

Karl Frantz

Village of Shorewood Hills

(608) 267-2680

kfrantz@shorewood-hills.org

Hannah Mohelnitzky

City of Madison Engineering

Public Information Officer

(608) 242-6003

hmohelnitzky@cityofmadison.com

mailto:gyoerger@cityofmadison.com
mailto:mbakalars@klengineering.com
mailto:district5@cityofmadison.com
mailto:kfrantz@shorewood-hills.org
mailto:hmohelnitzky@cityofmadison.com


Presentation Q & A







 

Page 1 of 3 

APPROVED MINUTES FOR THE VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

PLAN COMMISSION 
 

The Tuesday, May 14, 2019 meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order at 7:00 pm by 

Chair Dave Benforado. Members present were: Mr. Benforado, Deb Remington, Jim Etmanczyk, 

Karl Wellensiek, Earl Munson, Brauna Hartzell and John Imes. Also present was Karl Frantz, 

Village Administrator, Scott Harrington of Vandewalle, Matt Dregne of Stafford Rosenbaum and 

David Sykes, Administrative Services Manager/Deputy Clerk. About ten visitors were in the 

audience. 
 

Mr. Frantz confirmed the meeting had been properly posted and noticed. 
 

Mr. Benforado read a statement indicating he will recuse himself from any further discussion or 

vote on any application or action before the Plan Commission or Village Board regarding Village 

consideration of potential development plans by Tom Degen in the Garden Homes neighborhood 

or potential revisions to the Village Comprehensive Plan regarding Garden Homes. Mr. 

Benforado’s full statement is appended to these minutes. 
 

Mr. Benforado recused himself at 7:05 pm and sat in the audience. 
 

Mr. Frantz advised the Commission that they choose someone to Chair the meeting on these 

matters. Mr. Wellensiek moved and Mr. Etmanczyk second a motion that Mr. Imes serve as Chair 

when Mr. Benforado recuses himself. Mr. Imes is the President pro tem for the Board of Trustees 

and will serve in the same fashion during Board meetings. 

Mr. Frantz facilitated a vote: Approved 6-0. 
 

Discussion and possible action on Garden Homes Redevelopment guidelines and objectives 

Village Attorney Matt Dregne summarized the Commission’s options related to the Garden Homes 

guidelines and objectives. He recommended that the Commission not adopt the guidelines but 

rather acknowledge the receipt of them. If the Commission decides to go ahead with a 

Comprehensive Plan amendment, then the Commission could incorporate the work done by 

Vandewalle into the Plan. The Village already has a Comprehensive Plan with guidelines; the 

Commission should not adopt another set of guidelines. It must go through an official 

Comprehensive Plan amendment process, if it chooses to do so. 

Scott Harrington of Vandewalle indicated that from prior discussions with Tom Degen, he is likely 

to use the Vandewalle guidelines to make a presentation for development. Presumably, the first 

step would be to request a change to the Comprehensive Plan. The current trajectory of the process 

is different from what was suggested by Vandewalle in March, but all the planners that have been 

involved are comfortable with the current path with the Plan Commission in control of the planning 

process. 

Mr. Dregne reiterated that the Plan Commission is in control of the Comprehensive Plan 

amendment process. The Board of Trustees can only vote on a proposal made by the Plan 

Commission. The Board cannot change a proposal or consider a change without a proposal put 

forward by the Plan Commission. 

Mr. Etmanczyk asked about the 10-year update to the Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Dregne envisions 

the statutorily required 10-year update to the Comprehensive Plan will be completed in 2020. The 

Commission needs to decide if it wants to consider Garden Homes separately or as part of the 

broad update. 

Mr. Munson asked how recent rain events have affected Garden Homes and the status of the 

engineering consultant AE2S. Mr. Frantz said he was not aware of any problems in Garden Homes 

as a result of the recent rains. He indicated that the Village has engaged AE2S for stormwater 



 

Page 2 of 3 

modeling which has been done and presented to the Stormwater Committee. The Stormwater 

Committee will be providing an Interim Report to the Board at its May 20 meeting. Results of the 

computer modeling runs have ruled out some of the mitigation ideas being considered. Upstream 

raingardens are impractical; to be effective you would need 600 acre-feet of raingarden in a 1,500 

acre-feet watershed. Detention upstream is also impractical; you would need 200 acre-feet to solve 

the flooding problem, but the City of Madison intends to pursue more upstream detention anyway. 

The City is considering overhauling its Stormwater Ordinance by increasing fees and providing 

incentives to those that add stormwater improvements in new construction. The only idea with 

significant results seems to be a large tunnel directly from the watershed to Lake Mendota. The 

difficulty would be getting the water into the tunnel in the first place. You would need about an 

acre of land to infiltrate the stormwater into the tunnel. The initial design proposal is a large open 

vault (like a window well) or multiple open vaults to get stormwater into a 146” tunnel that would 

be installed under Blackhawk Golf Course to Lake Mendota. Initial estimates are $25-45M. 

Federal assistance would be needed to accomplish this, so the City of Madison is considering an 

amendment to the University Avenue reconstruction contract to increase the funding and change 

the plan. The current U-Ave reconstruction plan includes $13M to extend the stormwater culvert 

from Shorewood Boulevard to Grand Avenue. Stormwater modeling indicates that the new culvert 

will not solve flooding problems along University Avenue. It may be more beneficial to apply the 

$13M for University Avenue to the tunnel project. Cost sharing between the City and Shorewood 

Hills would change also. It would be based on the impervious area in the watershed rather than an 

85/15 split included in the original U-Ave reconstruction plan, which may increase the Village’s 

local share marginally but it may be more equitably divided. The Madison-area Planning 

Organization may agree with the change, deny it or push it back behind another project on Pleasant 

View Road. Mr. Frantz indicated this is a rapidly changing process and the Village Board has not 

even heard all of these details yet. 

Mr. Munson asked if we could ask AE2S for advice on doing things in the short-term while keeping 

in mind the long-term mitigation projects. Mr. Frantz said yes we can ask for advice, but the 

Stormwater Committee has already considered the simple, easy, “low hanging fruit” projects. 

Mr. Frantz reviewed the TIF 2 program in the 1990s to fund some stormwater improvement 

projects in homes. Something similar could be done now. Mr. Frantz and Village Engineer Brian 

Berquist completed an inventory of the current homes in the August 20 flooded areas to determine 

possible mitigation improvements (i.e. basement windows, flood vents), depending on what funds 

might be available. 

Mr. Munson asked if the floodwall could be raised a foot. Mr. Frantz indicated it is complicated 

because the entire circumference around Garden Homes would need to be raised as well. 

Mr. Imes asked if the Commission should consider micro or macro issues. Mr. Harrington said 

that previously any decisions on stormwater mitigation seemed years away. So, Vandewalle 

suggested dealing with Garden Homes now and stormwater in the future. 

Mr. Munson said the Commission needs to decide if Garden Homes should be separated into 

different zoning districts (as proposed in Vandewalle guidelines). He feels that it should be 

considered as one unit. 

Mr. Dregne said infrastructure is intricate in the planning process. It is difficult to make planning 

decisions before you know how to deal with stormwater. Mr. Frantz suggested that the idea of the 

open vault/tunnel is driving these planning decisions. The August 20 flood event was so atypical. 

Garden Homes has been pretty well protected for the last 19 years since the floodwall was built. 

Mr. Frantz added that Rob Phillips, City Engineer, has as his goal to maintain access for emergency 

vehicles down University Avenue to the hospital during any rain event. 

Mr. Munson moved and Ms. Hartzell second a motion to acknowledge receipt of the Garden 

Homes Redevelopment guidelines and objectives and thank Vandewalle for their work. 



 

Page 3 of 3 

Vote: Approved 6-0. 
 

Consider whether to initiate Comprehensive Plan amendment process 

Mr. Harrington explained the Comprehensive Plan amendment process. The first step is to adopt 

a public participation plan. Given that nothing has been proposed yet, the public participation plan 

would be appropriate for public record keeping purposes if Mr. Degen does propose something. 

Mr. Dregne explained the proposed public participation plan outline makes sense for consideration 

of Garden Homes redevelopment. If the Commission were taking a more broad view of a 

Comprehensive Plan revision, he may suggest a different public participation plan. Engineering 

consultation would be needed. At this time, he is not sure if engineering will drive planning or if 

planning will drive engineering. 

Mr. Harrington agreed that it could go either way; the plan needs “this”, so the vault will go 

“there”. He feels the Village can run parallel processes of public participation process and 

stormwater mitigation. If the Commission chooses to initiate a Comprehensive Plan amendment 

process, it can be halted or ended at any time. 

Mr. Munson asked what does the Commission gain by adopting the public participation process 

now. Mr. Dregne indicated it might afford the parallel tracks and the record keeping of the planning 

process to justify any final decision. 

Mr. Frantz added that any property owner can initiate the Comprehensive Plan amendment 

process, but the Commission can decide not to consider it. 

Mr. Harrington said Mr. Degen has been patient adhering to the current Garden Homes Planning 

Process. If the Commission has the public participation process in place, Mr. Degen could make a 

presentation satisfying the record. The Commission does not have to consider the proposal. 

Mr. Wellensiek moved and Ms. Remington seconded a motion to initiate a Comprehensive Plan 

amendment process focusing on Garden Homes. 
 

Develop and recommend public participation process if amendment is pursued 

No action taken at this time. 
 

Mr. Benforado rejoined the meeting at 9:02 pm. 
 

Minutes: April 9 

Mr. Etmanczyk moved and Ms. Hartzell seconded a motion to approve the April 9, 2019 minutes 

with one grammatical correction. 

Vote: Approved 7-0. 
 

Next Meeting 

The Commission’s next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, June 11, 2019 at 7:00 pm. Members 

may be polled for a special meeting before that date. 
 

Adjourn 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:06 pm. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

David Sykes 

Administrative Services Manager/Deputy Clerk 



Shorewood Hills Police Department 

Chief Aaron P. Chapin 

810 Shorewood Boulevard 

Madison, WI 53705-2115 

Phone: 608-267-1110 / Fax: 608-267-1155 

www.shorewood-hills.org 

 
 

 

 

TO:  VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

FROM:    AARON P. CHAPIN, CHIEF OF POLICE 

 

RE:     POLICE DEPARTMENT SUMMARY  

 

DATE: JUNE 14, 2019 

 

 

 

CALLS FOR SERVICE: 

 

May was a busy month for SHPD staff.  Officers responded to 407 incidents/calls for service.  22 

of the calls for service were classified by the officers as a criminal offense including 1 residential 

burglary, 1 damage to property, 4 drug investigations, 3 stolen bicycles, 2 fraud investigations, 3 

non-domestic disturbances, 5 thefts (non-retail), and 3 threats complaints.  There were eleven 9-

1-1 calls that were not related to another investigation.  This uptick in calls for service has 

required an increase in work product for the entire department.  

 

Officers conducted 5 crash investigations during the month.  There were 60 parking cases for 

vehicles parked illegally on the village streets and no complaints of illegal parking on private 

property.  Officers also conducted 118 traffic stops for various violations.   

 

The rest of the calls for service were of a routine nature including foot patrols, check areas, 

check property and other non-investigative police services.   

 

TRAINING: 

 

In the month of May, PO A. Dostalek attended the Internet Crimes Against Children Conference 

hosted by the WI Department of Justice.  She is trained to investigate these types of cases and 

works with WI DOJ to address the crimes of child pornography and child enticement.   

 

http://www.shorewood-hills.org/


Shorewood Hills Police Department 

Chief Aaron P. Chapin 

810 Shorewood Boulevard 

Madison, WI 53705-2115 

Phone: 608-267-1110 / Fax: 608-267-1155 

www.shorewood-hills.org 

Sgt. Weitzel and I attended the Wisconsin Law Enforcement Accreditation Group (WILEAG) 

Accreditation Manager Training.  We have begun to revise policies and are working to set up the 

PD for accreditation.    

 

I attended a CPM training titled “Policy Analysis for the Non-Analyst.”   

 

     

FUTURE ISSUES/CONCERNS: 

 

PO John Pierce resigned from the department effective May 31st.  We wish him well in future 

endeavors.   

 

The department was awarded a $4,000.00 grant for our participation in the Drive Sober or Get 

Pulled Over campaign earlier this year.  The vehicle computers need to be replaced and it 

appears that this grant could help with covering some of that cost.   

 

I have been appointed to be the Dane County Chiefs of Police Association representative to the 

Dane County Criminal Justice Council which meets monthly to discuss and problem solve issues 

related to the Criminal Justice System in Dane County.   

 

The department has started a recruiting process for full-time/part-time officers to replace 

vacancies caused by the resignation of PO Pierce. Lt. Martens will be administering the process 

and may reach out to Trustees/committee members to assist with interview panels.    

 

 

Respectfully Submitted,  

 

Aaron P Chapin, Chief of Police 

 

 

http://www.shorewood-hills.org/




May April March February January December November October September August July June

2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018

911 Abandoned Call 1 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 6
911 Call Playing W/Telephone 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 5
911 Call Silent 3 1 2 4 4 3 2 2 3 2 5 3 34
911 Call Unintentional 4 4 8 6 2 7 1 4 1 2 5 10 54
911 Disconnect 1 2 2 2 0 0 2 0 1 5 0 1 16
911 Misdial Call 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 2 0 6
Accident Hit And Run 2 1 0 3 0 2 3 1 1 1 3 2 19
Accident Mv/Deer 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Accident Private Property 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 3 1 10
Accident Property Damage 2 4 0 9 10 7 6 9 8 6 5 5 71
Accident Unknown Injuries 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 0 1 0 10
Accident W/Injuries 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 6 0 4 5 2 18
Adult Arrested Person 0 0 1 0 0 3 0 0 0 1 0 0 5
Alarm 4 14 3 6 2 16 12 7 6 7 15 8 100
Alarm Broadcast/File 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 3
Animal Bite 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 2
Animal Complaint/Disturbance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1
Animal Found 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Animal Lost 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1
Animal Stray 3 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 2 1 5 3 16
Annoying/Obscene Phone Call 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2
Assist Citizen 9 10 10 8 6 5 6 7 8 5 4 30 108
Assist Citizen Lake 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1
Assist Ems/Fire 9 9 17 6 4 12 6 12 11 8 10 5 109
Assist K9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1
Assist Police 20 14 5 9 6 20 16 20 14 13 12 23 172
Atl Person 0 0 1 1 0 2 0 0 2 1 0 0 7
Burglary Non-Residential 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
Burglary Residential 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 3 0 5
Check Person 12 13 20 3 6 4 4 4 6 2 1 7 82
Check Property 47 20 39 37 22 41 26 44 52 41 68 63 500
Child Abuse 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 4
Child Neglect 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Civil Dispute 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 2
Conveyance 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3
Conveyance Mental Health 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Damage To Property 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 2 1 3 11
Damage To Property Graffiti 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 3 0 0 0 4
Death Investigation 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Disturbance 1 3 5 1 2 3 3 2 0 0 0 0 20
Disturbance Unwanted Person 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 4
Domestic Disturbance 0 3 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 8
Drug Incident/Investigation 4 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 8
Follow-Up 2 1 2 0 0 1 1 2 0 2 4 1 16
Foot Patrol 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 1 1 0 6 1 12

Total



Found Person 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Fraud 2 2 3 1 0 3 1 4 0 2 1 1 20

May April March February January December November October September August July June

2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018

Information 25 22 12 18 8 13 10 8 19 14 27 42 218
Intoxicated Person 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 3
Juvenile Complaint 0 4 0 0 1 0 0 3 0 0 1 0 9
Liquor Law Violation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
Missing Adult 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 3
Missing Juvenile/Runaway 1 4 5 1 2 0 0 0 5 0 0 1 19
Noise Complaint 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 4 4 0 6 2 19
Non-Urgent Notifications 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Omvwi Arrest/Intoxicated Driver 4 2 2 0 1 1 3 1 4 3 2 4 27
Parking Complaint On Street 60 81 88 90 83 98 89 128 92 88 60 65 1022
Phone 14 9 6 5 7 9 9 6 2 4 12 10 93
Pnb/Aed Response 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 3
Preserve The Peace 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 3
Property Found 5 1 0 0 2 1 2 1 1 3 4 4 24
Property Lost 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 5
Recovered/Stolen Outside Agenc 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Robbery Armed 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Safety Hazard 10 3 2 7 9 6 3 6 6 11 3 17 83
Serving Legal Papers 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 2 0 7
Sexual Assault Of A Child 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Solicitors Complaint 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 3
Special Event 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 3 5
Stolen Auto 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 2
Stolen Bicycle 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 1 1 8
Suspicious Person 1 2 2 0 0 0 1 2 3 4 1 0 16
Suspicious Vehicle 4 3 0 3 1 5 0 7 2 0 4 0 29
Test 911 Call 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Theft 5 1 4 0 2 1 0 1 1 0 8 3 26
Theft From Auto 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 1 3
Theft Retail 0 2 0 0 0 3 0 1 1 0 0 1 8
Threats Complaint 3 1 0 1 2 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 10
Traffic Arrest 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
Traffic Complaint/Investigation 10 9 21 11 3 12 8 9 12 15 12 10 132
Traffic Incident 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Traffic Stop 118 113 120 73 39 100 87 76 102 80 78 92 1078
Trespass 3 0 3 0 3 0 0 3 1 1 2 1 17
Unknown 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Violation Of Court Order 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 2
Weapons Offense 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2
Total 410 369 390 315 232 390 312 403 390 345 388 433 4377

Total



 

 1 

Minutes of the Ad Hoc Stormwater Committee 

Village of Shorewood Hills 

Wed., June 5, 2019 

(scheduled for review at next Committee meeting) 

 

 

1) Called to Order: at 7:02 PM. 

a) Roll Call: Committee Members Present: Chair/Village President Dave Benforado, Carolyn Benforado, 

Gloria Beach, Peter Hans, Mark Mandel, Eric Riedner. Greg Brauer was absent. 

b) Others Present: Village Administrator Karl Frantz, Village Engineer Brian Berquist (Town and Country 

Engineering), Trustee Mark Lederer and Village Ad Hoc Sustainability Committee Chair Anne Readel. 

 

2) Meeting Notice: D.Benforado inquired and K.Frantz confirmed that the meeting had been properly posted in 

compliance with open meeting laws. 

 

3) Review Prior Meeting Minutes: Committee reviewed draft meeting minutes from May 6, 2019, meeting. 

Motion to approve by P.Hans, second by M.Mandel. D.Benforado suggested certain minor edits/corrections. 

Motion approved (6-0). 

 

4) Presentation and discussion of draft Village Sustainability Plan: D.Benforado and A.Readel provided the 

background and origin for the draft plan. Readel briefly summarized it, and emphasized the plan was not 

binding, that it outlines potential strategies to reach goals, that it is a plan for the municipal government of 

Shorewood Hills, and that the Sustainability Committee is seeking feedback on the plan from all Village 

Committees. Committee discussion and feedback ensued. Comments included a suggestion that the plan 

incorporate an acknowledgment and distinction between regular every day rain events and stormwater problems 

associated with those events, and more serious stormwater flash flooding events which put human life, 

residential homes and businesses at risk, and impede Fire/EMS/Police vehicles. It was also suggested that once 

the plan is reviewed and approved by the Village Board, that it be incorporated into the Village Comprehensive 

Plan, perhaps by reference or by adding it as a new chapter. 

 

5) Update on Village/City of Madison discussion regarding stormwater issues: K.Frantz/B.Berquist updated 

the Committee on recent discussions between the Village and the City of Madison regarding stormwater matters 

in the Univ Ave corridor. 

a) Based on Amber Lefers (AE2S) stormwater model runs for the City (that were shared with the Village) and 

the Village, the City now believes that the best and least cost option to remediate stormwater problems in 

the Univ Ave corridor is a new tunnel from the area of the intersection of Midvale Blvd/Univ Ave to Lake 

Mendota (that option in lieu of a new proposed 96” stormwater conduit from Shorewood Blvd to Grand 

Ave). Madison has asked KL Engineering (major contractor for the proposed 2021 reconstruction of Univ 

Ave project) to amend the project agreement to include a $68,500 AE2S Scope of Work (SOW) proposal 

that would examine the technical potential for and provide cost estimates for a new stormwater tunnel from 

the Midvale/Univ Ave area to Lake Mendota. Committee members received copies of the AE2S SOW 

proposal dated June 5, 2019, and the proposed Amendment No. 1 dated June 5, 2019, to the City /KL 

Engineering contract. Frantz explained that the Village would not be a signatory to that amendment since it 

is not a signatory to the original City of Madison/KL Engineering agreement, and instead the Village will 

consider signing an amendment to the existing IGA (intergovernmental agreement) between the City and 

the Village on the Univ Ave reconstruction project. Frantz explained that this IGA arrangement has worked 

out very well for the past two years, that he and B.Berquist attend monthly update meetings regarding the 

project, that they have a seat at the table, that their questions and concerns of the Village are noted and 

addressed. 

b) Frantz explained that the Village share of the $68,500 AE2S scope of work proposal would be roughly 16% 

($11,200). 

c) Frantz also indicated that the total estimated cost of this new tunnel as part of the Univ Ave project is 

$26M, which is twice the amount of the $13M estimated cost of the new 96” stormwater conduit that had 

been proposed as part of this project between Shorewood Blvd and Grand Ave and that the new tunnel 

would replace. That additional $13M, which would be a part of the Univ Ave project and thus eligible for a 

60% federal cost share as a stormwater remediation project, will need to be approved by the MPO; the City 



 

 2 

is working on that request. (“MPO” is the Madison Area Transportation Planning Board, the federally 

designated Metropolitan Planning Organization for the greater Madison area). Assuming the MPO 

approves the additional cost and the new $26M tunnel is built, the Village share of the new tunnel would be 

roughly $1.5M. 

 

6) Discuss Special Village Board Meeting on Stormwater Issues (Wed., June 12, 7 PM): B.Berquist, K.Frantz 

and A.Lefers (AE2S) will present an update for the Board of Trustees as to Univ Ave corridor stormwater 

model results. D.Benforado asked Stormwater Committee members to attend if they were able. 

 

7) Discussion of AE2S Stormwater Model Results Presented to Committee on May 6 and Potential 

Recommendations to Village Board: 

a) Committee discussed the AE2S model results for the City that A.Lefers presented to the Committee at the 

end of their May 6, 2019, meeting (the Committee did not have time at that meeting to discuss those 

results). The City had asked AE2S to model 16 different scenarios, each one containing a mix of various 

features. The model results were illustrated on an 11X17” color summary sheet showing the performance 

results of each model run at the four main intersections along the Univ Ave corridor (Midvale Blvd, 

Shorewood Blvd, Farley/UBay Drive, Grand Ave). 

b) The Committee discussed the risks and benefits of the new stormwater tunnel to Lake Mendota as a 

potential solution to the flooding problems in the Univ Ave corridor: 

i) Benefits: 

(1) Improves life safety in the village, provides protection to private and public property, and enables 

community safety improvements (e.g. ambulance access to UW Hospital, Fire access to Village). 

(2) Only solution of which we are aware that can substantively address 25 to 100-year stormwater. 

(3) City of Madison is motivated to address Univ Ave corridor  flooding. 

(4) The Univ Ave reconstruction project may be able to provide 60% federal cost share for 

stormwater remediation features. 

ii) Risks: 

(1) Modeling may overestimate or misestimate flooding levels.  

(2) Plans for the tunnel are still tentative, pending site evaluation. If cost is excessively higher or 

significant complications identified, then this may diminish feasibility or interest. 

(3) Will the city retain/detain less water upstream in Willow Creek Drainage Basin if they are 

counting on the tunnel to completely solve this problem? 

(4) Temporary inconvenience to the Village during the construction process. 

(5) Temporary disruption to Blackhawk Golf Club. 

(6) Permanent changes to outflow into the lake (but stormwater through the tunnel will not 

accumulate organic material by running over land; petrochemicals through gas stations; etc.). 

(7) Will need to identify 1-2 large sites that can funnel stormwater into the large tunnel. 

(8) Cost sharing with the city may not include the excessive burden borne by the village. 

c) Sense of the Committee was that these model run results point to the best option/least cost option to 

remediate stormwater problems in the Univ Ave corridor being a new tunnel to Lake Mendota from the 

area of the intersection of Midvale Blvd/Univ Ave. (Alternative P on Lefer’s 11X17” summary handout). 

d) Motion by E.Riedner, second by M.Mandel, that the Committee recommends that the Village Board 

pursue continued technical investigation of the stormwater tunnel to Lake Mendota as the preferred 

flood control solution for remediation of flooding problems in the Univ Ave corridor including 

approving the AE2S proposed Scope of Work in that regard dated June 5, 2019. Motion passed (6-0). 

 

8) Future Meeting Dates: Committee confirmed their next meeting dates: 

a) Thur., June 27, 2019 (7 PM) – in lieu of regularly scheduled July 3 meeting. 

b) Wed., Aug. 7 (7 PM). 

 

9) Adjournment: Committee adjourned at 9:17 PM. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by Dave Benforado on June 9, 2019. 

 

 




